BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE
IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF }
POTENTIAL VIQLATION OF 26 DFEL. }
ADMIN. C. 8§8001 AND ASSOCIATED ) PSC DOCKET NO., 394-13
CIVIL PENALTIES ASSESSED TO )
AERO ENERGY, INC. )
{OPENED October 3, 2013) )
ORDER NO. 8524

AND NOW, this 6™ day of February, 2014, the Delaware Public
Service Commission (“Commission”) determines and orders the following:

WHEREAS, the Commission has qualified for federal certification
to operate a state pipeline safety compliance program pursuant to 49
U.S.C. $60105(a) and has the authority pursuant to 26 Del. C. §821 to
make and enforce rules required by the federal National Gas Pipeline
Safety Act of 1968, as amended (49 U.S.C. Chapter 601); and

WHEREAS, the Commission is authorized by the Federal Pipeline
Safety Regulations, 49. C.F.R., Parts 190-193 and 198-199, to order
remedial actions and impose civil penalties where appropriate; and

WHEREAS, Aero Energy, Inc. (“Rero”) is an “Operator” as set forth
in 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001-1.0 and 26 Del. C. §802(11l) in that BAero
acts as an operator of a buried pipeline facility wused in the
transportation of natural gas within the State of Delaware and
therefore falls within the Commission’s intrastate gas pipeline
transportation jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, a member of the Commission’s staff (“Staff”} performed a
standard inspection of RAero’s distribution pipelines located at Nassau

Grove, Lewes, Delaware (“Nassau Grove”) and EKeys of March Harbor,

Rehoboth Beach, Delaware (“Marsh Harbor”), and noted his findings in
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two separate written reports both dated June 26, 2013 (the “"Reports”) ;
and

WHEREAS, with respect to Nagsau Grove, the report finds that ARero
failed to (i) timely exercise three key/critical valves; (ii) timely
test the cathodic protection system, (iii) timely inspect and test the
pressure limiting and regulation stations; and (iv) follow their own
procedural manuals; and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely exercise three key/critical
sectionalizing valves represents three violations of 49 C.F.R.
§192.747(a);* and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely test the cathodic protection
system represents one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(a) ;¢ and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely inspect and test the pressure
limiting and regulation stations represents one violation of 49 C.F.R.

§192.739(a);? and

1 49 ¢,F.R. §192.747{(a} "valve maintenance: Distribution systems,” requires
that *[e]lach wvalve, the use of which may be necessary for the safe operation
of a distribution system, must be checked and serviced at intervals not
exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year.”

2 49 C.F.R. 8192.465(a) “External corrosion control: Monitoring” requires
that “[elach pipeline that is under cathodic protection must be tegted at
least once each calendar year, but with intervals not exceeding 15 months, to
determine whether the cathodic protection meets the requirements of §122.463

"

3 49 C.F.R. §192.739{a) “Each pressure limiting station, relief device {except
rupture discs), and pressure regulating station and its equipment must be
subjected at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each
calendar year, to inspections and tests to determine that it is (1) in good
mechanical condition; (2) adeguate from the standpoint of capacity and
reliability of operation for the service in which it is employed; (3} except
as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, set to control or relieve at
the correct pressure consistent with the pressure limits of §192.201(a}); and
(4) properly installed and protected from dirt, liquids, or other conditions
that might prevent proper coperation.” :
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WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to follow their own procedural manuals
represents one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a);* and

WHEREAS, with respect to Marsh Harbor, the report finds that Aero
filed to timely repair the cathodic protection system and failed to
follow their own procedural manuals; and

WHERBAS, Aero’s failure to timely repair the cathodic protection
system represents one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(d)%; and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to follow their own procedural manuals
represents one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a); and

WHEREAS, Dbased on the findings in the Reports, the Program
Manager of the Pipeline Safety Program for the State of Delaware (the
“Program Manager”) sent a written letter of the Notice of Potential
Violation (the “NOPV") to Aerc on Octobgr 3, 2013, along with copies
of the Reports. Copies of the NOPV and Reports are attached to the
Proposed Consent Agreement {(defined below); and

WHEREAS, because Aero successfully performed all of the
monitoring and testing required and provided appropriate documentation
to evidence same, the NOPV recommended no remedial action but did note
that the "“lack of attention to these sites is concerning.” The NOPV

did recommend that Aero pay c¢ivil penalties totaling $1,700.00

* 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a) "Procedural manual for operations, maintenance, and

emergencies” states generally that *“[e]lach operator shall prepare and follow
for each pipeline, a wmanual of written procedures for conducting operations
and maintenance activities and for emergency response. For transmission
lines, the manual must also include procedures for handling abnormal
operations. This manual must be reviewed and updated by the operator at
intervals not exceedinglS months, but at least once each calendar year. This
manual must be prepared before operations of a pipeline system commence.
Appropriate parts of the manual must be kept at lecations where operations
and maintenance activities are conducted.”

® 49 C.F.R. §192.465(d) provides that “Each operator shall take prompt
remedial action to correct any deficiencies indicated by the monitoring.”
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consisting of three violations at $200.00 per wviolation of 49 C.F.R.
§192.747(a), $200.00 for one violation of 49 C.F.R. §l192.465(a},
$200.00 for one violation of 49 C.F.R. 8182.739(a), $300.00 for one
vioclation of 49 C.F.R. 8§192.465(d), and two viclations at $200.00 perx
violation of 49 C.F.R. §1%2.605(a) {(the “Civil Penalties”); and
WHEREAS, Aero and Staff entered into settlement negotlations and

agreed to resolve the potehtial violations by entering into a consent

agreement (the *“Consent Agreement”) which is attached hereto as

Exhibit “A”, Both Staff and Aero agree that the Consent Agreement is

subject to the Commission’s review and final approval; and

WHEREAS, Staff and Aero submit that resolving this matter through
a negotiated compromise and without the need for a formal evidentiary
hearing serves the public interest and yields a reasonable result. In
addition, both parties assert that the Civil Penalties are within the
bounds of allowable c¢ivil penalty amounts based on circumstances
unigue to Aero and this settlement will avoid further administrative
and hearing costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF
NOT FEWER THAN THREE COMMISSIONERS:

1. Pursuant to 26 Del. C. §512(c), the Commission finds that
the Consent Agreement is in the public interest for the reasons set
forth above and, therefore, approves such agreement in full.

2. Pursuant to 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001-7.1.2, 49 1U.S.C.
60122 (a), and subpart B of Part 130 of the Federal Regulations, the
Commission assesses a civil penalty against Aero in the amount of

$1,700.00 payable within 20 days of the date of this Order.
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3. Aero is hereby placed on mnotice that the costs of the
proceedings may be charged to it under the provisions of 26 Del. C.
§114 (b) (1}.

4. The Commission reserves the jurisdiction and authority to
enter such further Orders in this matter as may be deemed necessary or

proper.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:

Chair

/s/ Joann T. Conaway
Commissionexr

/s8/ Jaymes B. Lester
Commissioner

/s/ Jeffrey J. Clark
Commissioner

Commissioner

ATTEST:

/s/ Alisa Carrow Bentley
Secretary
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE

IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF )
POTENTIAL VIOLATION OF 26 DEL. )
ADMIN. C. §8001 AND ASSOCIATED ) DOCKET NO. 394-13
CIVIL PENALTIES ASSESSED TO )
AERO ENERGY, INC. (OPENED OCTOBER 3, 2013) )

CONSENT AGREEMENT

THIS CONSENT AGREEMENT is made this 13th day of January, 2014, between
Aero Energy, Inc. (“Aero”) and the Delaware Public Service Commission Staff (“Stafl™).

WHEREAS, Aero is a Pennsylvania corporation with headquarters located at 230
Lincoln Way East, New Oxford, PA 17350 doing business at developments located at Nassau
Grove, Lewes, Delaware (“Nassau Grove™) and Keys of Marsh Harbor, Rehoboth Beach,
Delaware (“Marsh Harbor™); and

WHEREAS, Acro is an “Operator” as set forth in 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001-1.0 and 26
Del. C. §802(11) in that such company acts as an operator of a buried pipeline facility used in the
transportation of gas, such as propane and natural gas, within the State of Delaware; and

WHEREAS, the Delaware Public Service Commission (the “Commission™) has qualified
for federal certification of a state pipeline safety compliance program under 49 U.S.C.
§60105(a), which relates to the regulation of intrastate gas pipeline transportation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 26 Del. C. §821, the Commission "shall have the authority to
make and enforce rules required by the federal Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, as
amended (49 U.S.C. Chapter 601), to qualify for federal certification of a state pipeline safety
compliance program under 49 U.S.C. § 60105(a)....;” and

WHEREAS, as part of the Commission’s duties as a certified state pipeline safety
compliance program, on June 26, 2013, Mr. Robert Schaefgen, a member of Staff, performed a
standard inspection of Aero facilities located at both Nassau Grove and Marsh Harbor; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Schaefgen prepared two separate written reports, one for Nassau Grove
dated June 26, 2013 and a separate report for Marsh Harbor dated June 26, 2013, which
summarize his findings; and

WHEREAS, based on Mr. Schaefgen’s written reports and findings dated June 26, 2013,
Mr. Gerald D. Platt, Program Manager of the Pipeline Safety Program for the State of Delaware,
sent a written letter of the Notice of Potential Violations (“NOPV”) to Aero on October 3, 2013.
A copy of the NOPV is attached as Exhibit “A”; and




WHEREAS, Mr. Platt summarized the report for Nassau Grove by stating that: “There
were no records of the maintenance/exercising of the key/critical sectionalizing valves, no
records of the monitoring of the external corrosion control, and no records of inspection/testing
of the pressure regulating station of the LPG distribution system of Nassau Grove since March
29, 2012. Upon realizing that all of these tasks were about to be overdue, Mr. Adrien Turcotte
made arrangements to have each of these tasks completed. The results of each task subsequently
showed satisfactory results, but they were completed after the deadline of June 29, 2013. Other
minor issues were asked to be corrected, but no violations are being cited for these issues at this
time. It was noted that there are three critical sectionalizing valves to be exercised for this
system”; and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely exercise three key/critical sectionalizing valves
represents three violations of 49 C.F.R. §192.747(a);1 and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely test the cathodic protection system represents one
violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(a); and :

WIHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely inspect and test the pressure limiting and regulation
stations represents one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.739(a)3

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to follow their own procedural manuals represents one
violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a);" and

WHEREAS, Mr. Platt summarized the report for Marsh Harbor by stating that: “When
the testing of the cathodic protection system was last performed on May 14, 2012, all of the
readings were too low to meet the requirements of 49 C.F.R. §192.463, External corrosion
control; Cathodic protection. However, no potential violations were cited at that time, and the
Operator was provided the opportunity to correct the situation. Since that time, no corrective

' 49 C.F.R. §192.747(a) "Valve maintenance: Distribution systems,” requires that “[e]Jach valve, the use of which
may be necessary for the safe operation of a distribution system, must be checked and serviced at intervals not
exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year.” '

249 C.F.R. §192.465(a) “External corrosion control: Monitoring” requires that “[eJach pipeline that is under
cathodic protection must be tested at least once each calendar year, but with intervals not exceeding 15 months, to
determine whether the cathodic protection meets the requirements of §192.463 . ...”

49 C.F.R. §192.739(a) “Each pressure limiting station, relief device (except rupture discs), and pressure regulating
station and its equipment must be subjected at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar
year, to inspections and tests to determine that it is (1} in good mechanical condition; (2) adequate from the
standpoint of capacity and reliability of operation for the service in which it is employed; (3) except as provided in
paragraph (b) of this section, set to contro} or relieve at the correct pressure consistent with the pressure limits of
§192.201(a); and (4) properly installed and protected from dirt, liquids, or other conditions that might prevent proper
operation.”

4 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a) "Procedural manual for operations, maintenance, and emergencies” states generally that
“[e]ach operator shall prepare and follow for each pipeline, a manual of written procedures for conducting
operations and maintenance activities and for emergency response. For transmission lines, the manual must also
include procedures for handling abnormal operations. This manual must be reviewed and updated by the operator at
intervals not exceeding!3 months, but at least once each calendar year. This manual must be prepared before
operations of a pipeline system commence. Appropriate parts of the manual must be kept at locations where
operations and maintenance activities are conducted.”

2




action had been taken, Subsequent to the June 26, 2013, inspection, testing was performed, and
the readings barely met the requirements. No other action was reported as being taken” and

WHEREAS, Aero’s failure to timely repair the cathodic protection system represents
one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(d)’; and

WHEREAS, Aecro’s failure to follow their own procedural manuals represents one
violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a);

WHEREAS, among other things, the NOPYV states that the Commission is authorized by
the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations, 49 C.F.R., Parts 190-193 and 198-199 (the
“Regulations”) to order remedial actions and to impose civil penaltics. The NOPV further states
that “Commission Staff recognizes that the Operator has successfully performed all of the
monitoring and testing since the inspections were conducted, and this documentation has been
provided. So, there is no remedial action to be taken at this time. However, the lack of attention
to these sites is concerning.” Accordingly, Staff recommended the following civil penalties:

$200.00 per violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.747(a), which totals $600.00,
$200.00 for one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(a),

$200.00 for one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.739(a),

$300.00 for-one violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.465(d), and

$200.00 per violation of 49 C.F.R. §192.605(a), which totals $400.00.

Thus, the total amount of recommended civil penalties is $1,700.00; and

WHEREAS, Aero and Staff entered into settlement negotiations and have agreed to
resolve all issues in this proceeding without recourse to a formal administrative hearing by
entering into this Consent Agreement under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Staff informed Aero that it is entitled to an administrative hearing and to be
represented by counsel. Aero’s decision to waive a hearing is a free and voluntary act.

NOW, THEREFORE, upon the mutual consent and agreement of Aero and Staff
(individually, a “Party,” and collectively, the “Parties”), the Parties hereby propose a complete
settlement of all issues in this proceeding as follows:

1. The Parties have conferred and agree to enter into this Consent Agreement on the
terms and conditions contained herein because the resolving this matter by stipulation will serve
the interests of the public. The Parties also agree that the terms and conditions of this Consent
Agreement will be presented to the Commission for the Commission’s final approval.

2. Aero waives its right to an administrative evidentiary hearing for this proceeding.

5 49 C.F.R. §192.465(d) provides that “Each operator shall take prompt remedial action to correct any deficiencies
indicated by the monitoring.”




3. Aero states that it fully understands all of the violations alleged by Staff and all of
the consequences of the agreement to enter into this Consent Agreement.

4. Aero admits to all of the facts relating to the above-referenced violations.

5. Pursuant to 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001-7.1.2, Aero agrees to pay the Commission a
civil penalty in the amount of $1,700.00 (the “Civil Penalty™) within 20 days of the date of a
final Commission order that approves this Consent Agreement. Pursuant to 26 Del C. §116
(b)(2), the Civil Penalty will be payable to and deposited into the General Fund of the State of
Delaware.

6. If Aero fails to timely pay the Civil Penalty, Aero agrees that it shall pay interest
at the current annual rate in accordance with 31 U.S.C. §3717, 31 C.F.R. §901.9, and 49 CF.R.
§89.23. Pursuant to which, a late penalty charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be assessed
if payment is not made within 110 days of service of a Notice of Late Payment. Furthermore,
Aero understands that failure to pay the Civil Penalty may result in referral of the matter to the
Delaware Attorney General for appropriate action.

7. Entry into this Consent Agreement is the free and voluntary act of Aero and its
terms are binding upon Aero and may be admitted into evidence in any judicial or administrative
proceeding against Aero in order to enforce its terms.

8. This finding of violations will be considered a prior offense in any subsequent
enforcement action against Aero.

9. Nothing in this Consent Agreement affects or relieves Aero of its responsibility to
comply with all applicable requirements of the federal Pipeline Safety Laws, 49 U.S.C. §60101,
et seq., and the regulations and administrative orders issued thereunder. Nothing in this Consent
Agreement alters Staff’s right of access, entry, inspection, and information gathering ot Staff’s
authority to bring enforcement actions against Aero pursuant to the federal Pipeline Safety Laws,
the regulations and administrative orders issued thereunder, Delaware’s law or regulations, or
any other provision of Federal or State law.

10.  No change, amendment, or modification to this Consent Agreement shall be
effective or binding unless it is in writing and is dated and signed by the Parties.

11.  If Staff or the Commission fails to act on any one or more defaults by Aero, such
failure to act shall not be a waiver of any rights hereunder on the part of the Staff or the
Commission to declare Aero in default and to take such action as may be permitted by this
Consent Agreement or by law.

12.  This agreement shall survive Aero and be enforceable against its successors or
assigns.

13. The provisions of this Consent Agreement are not severable.




14.  The Parties agree that this Consent Agreement may be submitted to the
Commission for its consideration and final decision and that no Party will oppose such a
determination. Except as expressly set forth herein, neither of the Parties waives any rights it
may have to take any position in future proceedings regarding the issues in this proceeding,
including positions contrary to positions taken herein or in previous cases.

15.  This Consent Agreement will become effective upon the Commission's issuance
of a final order approving it and all of its terms and conditions without modification. After the
issuance of such final order, the terms of this Consent Agreement shall be implemented and
enforceable notwithstanding the pendency of any legal challenge to the Commission's approval
or to actions taken by another regulatory agency or Court, unless such implementation and
enforcement is stayed or enjoined by the Commission, another regulatory agency, or a Court
having jurisdiction over the matter.

16.  The Parties may enforce this Consent Agreement through any appropriate action
before the Commission or through any other available remedy. Any final Commission order
related to the enforcement or interpretation of this Consent Agreement shall be appealable to the
Superior Court of the State of Delaware, in addition to any other available remedy at law or in
equity.

17.  If a Court grants a legal challenge to the Commission's approval of this Consent
Agreement and issues a final non-appealable order that prevents or precludes implementation of
any materia) term of this Consent Agreement, or if some other legal bar has the same effect, then
this Consent Agreement is voidable upon written notice by either Party to the other Party.

18.  This Consent Agreement resolves all issues specifically addressed herein and
precludes the Parties from asserting contrary positions during subsequent litigation in this
proceeding or related appeals; provided, however, that this Consent Agreement is made without
admission against or prejudice to any factual or legal positions which any of the Parties may
assert (a) if the Commission does not issue a final order approving this Consent Agreement
without modifications; or (b) in other proceedings before the Commission or another
governmental body so long as such positions do not attempt to abrogate this Consent Agreement.
This Consent Agreement is determinative and conclusive of all of the issues addressed herein
and, upon approval by the Commission, shall constitute a final adjudication as to the Parties of
all of the issues in this proceeding. '

19.  This Consent Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions agreed to by the
Parties and constitutes the final agreement between Aero and Staff.

20.  This Consent Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the Commission's
approval of all of the specific terms and conditions contained herein without modification. If the
Commission fails to grant such approval, or modifies any of the terms and conditions herein, this
Consent Agreement will terminate and be of no force and effect, unless the Parties agree in
writing to waive the application of this provision. The Parties will make their best efforts to
support this Consent Agreement and to secure its approval by the Commission.
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21.... Itis expressly understood and agreed that this Consent Agreement constitutes a

negotiated:; Iesolutmn of the issues in this proceeding.

22:.  Eachof the.undersigned representatives of the Patties cerfifies that he 6 she is
fully authonzed by the Party represented to enter into the terms and. conditions hereof and to

‘execute and legally bind that Party to it.

Thef'underslgned Pajties; intending to bind themselves and their SUCCEsSOTs and assigns,

have:caused this :
all'of thé conditions-and terms set forth herein.

DELAWARE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION STAFF

Printe&.N:anzlez GQRA\J) D %‘TT
Tlﬂe ? lae ge&““\ :l? QF'&M )V{cu\z:c)r_f—

AERQ ENERGY, INC.

Date:
’Prmted Name :
Title: /Zé’a;/gpc.g 4 ﬂéﬁfﬁ 2 /T

nsent Agreement to be‘signed by their duly-authorized representatives and
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EXHIBIT “A”»

COPY OF WRITTEN NOTICE OF POTENTIAL VIOLATION
OF 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001 DATED OCTOBER 3, 2013, FROM
THE DEILAWARE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION STAFF
TO AERO ENERGY




STATE OF DELAWARE
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

861 Swver LAKE BOULEVARD

CANNON BuiLbing, Surire 100 “TELEPHONE: (302} 736-7500
DoVER, DELAWARE 19904 Fax: {302) 739-4849
October 3, 2013
Mr. Adrien Turcotte
Aero Energy
1616 Northwood Drive

Salisbury, MD 21801

RE: Written Notice of Potential Violation of 26 Del. Admin. C. §8001 - Nassau Grove and Keys of
Marsh Harbor

Dear Mr. Turcotte:

This letter serves as notice to Aero Energy (the “Operator”) of potential violations of the State of
Delaware’s Rules to Establish an Intrastate Gas Pipeline Safety Compliance Program, 26 Del. Admin. C.
§8001 (the “Regulations”). The Regulations, at a minimum, enforce the standards set forth in the
Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations, Title 49, US. Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 190-193 and 198-
199.

_On June 26, 2013, Mr. Robert Schaefgen, a member of the Commission Sta__ff_,- performed a
Standard Inspection of the records and facilities of the Operator for Nassau Grove in Lewes, DE. Mr.
Schaefgen noted the following:

There were no records of the maintenance/exercising of the key/critical sectionalizing valves, no
records of the monitoring of the external corrosion control, and no records of inspection/testing
of the pressure regulating station of the LPG distribution system of Nassau Grove since March
29, 2012. Upon realizing that all of these tasks were about to be overdue, Mr. Adrien Turcotte
made arrangements to have each of these tasks completed. The results of each task
subsequently showed satisfactory results, but they were completed after the deadline of June
29, 2013. Other minor issues were asked 1o be corrected, but no violations are being cited for
these issues at this time. It was noted that there are three critical sectionalizing valves to be
exercised for this system. '

This represents three (3) potential violations of 49 C.F.R. §192.747(a}: Valve maintenance:
Distribution systems, which requires the following:

“Each valve, the use of which may be necessary for the safe operation of a distribution system,
must be checked and serviced at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each
calendar year.”




: 'Mr Adrien Turcotte, Aero Energv
_ October 3, 2013 '
Page 2

This alse represents one potential violation of 49 C. F R §192 465(3) Extemal corrosuon control '
Monztormg, wh:ch in part, requ:res the followmg : '

”Each pfpelme thot is under cathodic protection must be tested at least once each ca!endar year :
- but with mterva!s not exceedmg 15 months, to determine whether the cathodrc pmtect;on meets

_the requ:rements of §192, 463

This also represents one potentrat \nolatlon of 43 C.E.R. §192 739(3) Pressure hrmtmg and
regulating stations: Inspectioh and testlrrg, ‘which requrres the following:

“Each pressure hmrtmg statﬁon, rehef device (except rupture discs), and pressure regu!atmg
statron dand jts equrpment must be subjected at rntervals not exceedmg 15 months, but at least
‘once each calendar year, tor mspectrons and tests to determme that itis-
{1) In'good: mechanrcal condition;
(2)-Adequate from the standpoint of copacity and rehobrhty of operatron for the service
~_in which it is employed;
(3) Exceptuos provided in paragraph {b) of this sectron, set to control. or reheve at the
correct pressure consistent with the pressure limits of §192.201(a); and
(4) Properly installed and protected from dirt; liquids, or other conditions that might
prevent proper operation. .

‘ Thls also represents a potential violation of 49 C.F.R: §192 605{a); Procedural manual for .
operatnons, mamtenance, and emergencies, which states the following; :

“General. Ei och operator shall prepare and follow for each pipeline, o manua! of written '
_ procedures for conducting operations and maintenance octivities and for emergency response.
. For transmission lines, the manual. must. also mclude procedures for handling abnormal
: operations This manual must be rewewed and updated by the operator at intervals not
: exceedmg 15 months, but at Ieast once edach calendar year. This manual must be prepared
before operuations of a pipefine system commence. Appropriate ports of the manuaf must be kept o
at locations. where operations and maintenance activities: are conducted - '

Later on June 26 2013 Mr. Schaefgen proceeded to Keys of Marsh Harbor in. Rehoboth Beach
DE to perform a Standard lnspectson Al that site, Mr. Schaefgen noted the foliowmg

When the testlng of the cathodlc protectlon system was last performed on May 14,2012, ali of
o the readmgs were too low to meet the requirements of 49 C.F.R. §192.463, External corrosion

control: Cathodlc protection. However, no potentual wo!atuons were crted at that. t:me_. andthe - .-

) Operator was provided the opportunity to correct the sutuatron Since that ttme o corrective
~ action had been taken. Subsequent to the june 26, 2013 rnspectron i serformed, and
~ the readings barely met the requirements. No other action was. reported as. belng taken. -

This represents a potential violation of 49 C.F.R. §192 465{d): External corrosion control:
Monitoring; whlch_requrres the following:

“Each operator shail take prompt remedial action to correct any deficiencies indicated by the
monitoring.” -




"Mr., Adﬂen Turcotte, Aero Energv
-0ctober3 2013
Page 3

Th:s also represents another potential violation of 49 C F.R. §192. GOS(a) Procedural manual for
operations, mamtenance, and emergenctes, which states the: foltow:ng :

- *General. Each operator shall prepare gnd follow for each pipeline, a- manual ¢
procedures for conductmg operat;ans ond maintenance: activities and for. emerg cy esponse

~ For transmission lines, the manual mast also: mcfude procedures for handling ¢ abnormal .
operations, This manual.must be reviewed: and updated by the operator at intervals not’
exceeding15 months, but at feast once each calendar year. This manual must be prepared before
operations of a pipeline system commence. Appropriate parts of the manual must be kept at
iocatrons where operations and mamtenance activities are conducted.” s

The Commnssnon Staff recognizes that the Operator has successfu[ly performed all of the
in; \ testmg smce the mspectlons were conducted and thIS documentatlon has been

"- '-?i':these setes ig cancernmg Therefore the: Commusswn Staffis recommendmg that the Commlssmn .

_ __lmpose a civil penalty of $200 0{} per potenttal wolatlon of 49 C. F R. §192 ?47(3), whach totals 5600 00

for the potential wolatlon of 49 CF. R §192 465(d), and wnpose acivil penaity of 5200 00 per potential
violation.of 49 C F.R. §192. 605(a), which totals 5400 00. Thus, the total amount of reco 'mended civil
penalties’is $1700 00, Add|t|onat penalties may also be lmposed forany addltuonal vaoiat;ons found in
any ensuing investigations-or hearings. : :

The Commussuon Staff is referring this matter to the Commlssson for a for ; SO |
Commnssmn can rule on this matter. A docket wiil be opened for this matter, and an f a hearing
date will be sent to the Operator as.soonas possnble :

f you have questlons regardmg thns matter, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 302-‘736-
7526 '

Sincerely,

s

Gerald D. Platt, Program Manager

Enclosures: = Copies of two Violation Reports for 6/26/13

cc. . Kathleen Makowski, Deputy Attorney General
_Robert Schaefgen DE PSC Pipeline Safety Enspector




UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - V 1
RESEARCH AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION  * . . s

OFFICE OF PIPELINE ‘SAFETY = o o T
‘GAS PIPELINE SAFETY VIOLATION: :REPORT- : "

1. Inspectdr'ﬁéﬁé”)" 2. Date of Imspection 3. cpp # - il

Robert Schaefgen 06/26/13 L

4. Pipeline Operator/0wner . . . ) ~~é
Aero Energy ' : R e k
5a. Headquarters Address Sb,_wiélé§ﬁéﬁé"ﬂo.

230 Lincoln Way East, New Oxford, PA 17350 . (302)°734-7416

6. ' Inspection’ Location Tnspection Unit

7.
Nassau, ‘DE’ No. 1&4 of 8
8. - Portion of ‘Svstem Inspected (Describe 1ocation & facility)
Nassau Grove~ Nassau, DE
9, Nature and Size of Operator
%9a. Type. of Operator Sh. Type of Pipe in System
. Ingpected
LNG (interstate) ~Cast Tron
LNG (Intfaéﬁéﬁé)“' Steel
X LPG e X Plastic
.Master Meter = Other - o
Other D1str1butlon L : & : .
Gatherlng : 9¢. ‘Size of Operator: .(No: of s
Transm1551on (interstate) Miles/CustomerSYStorage _ o
: 'Transm1551on (intrastaté) - Capacxty 32, 25 mlles/ /178600
10. Nature cf Probahle Violatlons {(Check as many as appllcable)

- A Problem 1n Des;gn/Materlals
. 12.“Prob1em in Construction
. S3. Weldlng or Joining
4, _Problem in LNG Equlpment
5. Test Requ;rements or 'MAOP Quallflcatlon
6. . Corros;cn Control
7.,'Pressure~gqntrol
X 8.:“Other'Maintenance/Monitoring
9. Personnel-Qualifications & Training
10. Fire Protection
11. Secdurity
7 12.  Anti-Drug Program i
‘ 13. Other Operations. . S e e o )
14. Reporting Requirements . S T i
. 15, Other
16. Inadequate/No Procedures
4, Construction D. Training
B. Corrosion Control . E. Maintenance
Co ¢ Operations

Revised 12/3/08




Violation No, 1

violateq; 192.605 (a) Procedural Manual for Operations, Maintenance, and Eﬁéiéencies

llb. Summarize what the regulation requires that operator did not do:
Operator. dld not follow their manual of written procedures- £or conducting Operatlons
and maintenance Act1v1t1es, specifically the Valve Maintenance interval not. exceeding
15 months, In additiodn, ‘operator did not perform a regulator station 1nspectlon and
perform CP monltorlng wathln 15 months,

12._ Provide detailed information about violation*

Operator dld not exerc1se thei¥ key vdlves {(Valve Maintenance), Meter and Regulator
'~Stat10n 1nspect10n and CP monitoring of the u/g tanks at an 1nterva1 not exceedlng 15
months, ‘but at least once each calendar year. -

13, Public and/or environmental concerns in area: of violation:

By not performlng the system maintenance ‘'within 15 months, operator 1S plac1ng
residents safety in: jeopardy in that key/crltlcal—maln valves may not be operational in
the event of a leak on a main or service or .a hlt llne

”ﬁastern Shore Regional Manager

14a. Person zntefvieweci:mrien Turcotte 'ritié:"‘

14b. Comments .of peraon interviewed He sald that he would 1mmed1ately get the valves
exercised after i had performed the 1nspect10n on; June 26, 2013_“ - .
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Contlnuatlon Sheet
: o L : Violation No.' 2. :
1la, y]al - 192 747 {a)- Valve maintenance: Distribution systems

“RBach valve, the use” of which may be necessary for the. i : a'dlstrlbutzon
" system, mustmbe’checked and serviced at intervals hot exceedlng 15 months, but: at least
once each calendar year.‘ ) )

SOt

o
TR

12.; Provide deta;led information about the violation- -
Operator failed.to exerczse the valves annually,'not to exceed 15 months.

_13._ Public and/or environmental concerns in area’ of vzolation-_ _ R

By not operat;ng the key/crltlcal/sectlonallzlng valves annually_‘ t to exceed 15
months, 3z valve mlght not be able to be operated when needed in an - emergency ‘response,
‘such as a hit line.

14a5vpetgeﬁ Interviewed: -Adrien Turcotte © Title: Edstern Shore Regiocnal Maﬁager

14b. Comments of person interviewed. Once he reallzed that he” was 1ate in exerc151ng
the key/crltlcal wvalves-“he:had Robert Buck of Bucks Un11m1ted exerc1se ‘theé main-
critical valves whlch included the valves on the regulator statlon as well as the tank
valves

Revised 12/3/08




" Continuation Sheet
i Violation No. 3 S
lla. CER', Vicolated: 192.465 External corrosion control: Monitoring; o

&

11b Summarize what the regulation requires that’ operator did not do: _
Operator did not test at least once each calendar yvear, but with intervals not o
exceeding 15 months, to determine whether the cathodic protection meets the =
requlrements of §192.463.,

12, Provide detailed information about ‘the violation: o .
Operator wag late in performing the CP monitoring of it’'s u/g propane storage tanks.

~ 13, . Public and/ox’ environmental concerns ‘in ‘aréa 6F violation:
¢ By not: performing the ‘system maintenance within 15 months, operator ig p1a01ng
: re51dents safety in Jeopardy :

14a. Person Interviewed: Adrien Turcotte Titleé: Eastern Shore Regionai_Manager

14b. Comments Of person interviewed: Operator performed the CP monltorlng (Tank to
soil) readlng after the 1nspect1on conducted on 067/26/13 and after 15 ‘months had
elapsed ' :

Revised 12/3/08




Continuation Sheet
_ _ : Violation No. 4 S
lla. CFR Violated. 182.73%{(a) Pressure 11m1t1ng and regulatmng stations.
Inspectlon and testzng i :

1lb. Summarize what the regulaticn requires that operator did not do-

The Pressureregu_laj:;ng station and its equipment must be subjected to 1nspect10ns and
tests to determine that it is-

(1) In good mechanlcal condltlon, e

(2) Adequate from the standp01nt of capaelty and rellablllty of operatlon for the
service in which it is employed;

{3) Except as prov1ded in paragraph {b)- of this section, set to.control or relieve at
the correct pressure consistent with the pressure limits of §192.201(a}; and

{4) Properly installed and protected from dirt, liquids, or other condltlons that _
might prevent proper operatlon '

at intervals RSt exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year.

12, Provide detailed information about the. violatlon- : :
Operator ‘had not 1nspected and tested the pressure 11m1t1ng and regulatlng station
within 15 months.

'13. Public and/or env1ronmenta1 concerne in area of violahion-""
By not 1nspect1ng the- pressure” llmltlng and regulator. station wzthxn the requlred 15
months : operator could -be “exposing the dlstrlbutlon system to overpressure and placing
the residents safety in jeopardy )

l4a. Person Intervmewed' Adrlen Turcotte Title: Eaétefn‘shore RegionalfManagef

14b. Conments® ef person interviewed He 1nd1cated that hé ‘had thought that the pressure
~and regulating statlon had been inspected and tested, however he. did- not: have the-
documentat:on : :

-~
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: 15. ‘Supporting Documents/Materials
‘Item No.: ‘Bource of . | Remarks,
Documents . . |
B ‘pipeline Safety Regulations OPS/PHMSA
1 - | Part 192 : S
16, . Inspe tor's Sigmatures:. B B . . Date:

Revised 12/3/08




1?f<ytbmﬁliance'nistory -

; PR i, ‘ Describe Violation/ tCPF No. _
Date ... .~ Place . - Noncompliance o L Date-WL . Outcome’

1. Gravity of Offense

19. Degree of Culpability
Fair e

.20. ability to Conmtinue in Business
‘Excellent . .

21. 2ability to Pay
Good

22, Good Faith in Attempting to Achieve Compliance
Excellent

23a.  Proposed Remedy
X Warning Letter _
o X .. ¢ivil Penalty: Recommended Amount $ 500
can _ ... Compliance Ordexr -
e : .- Hazardous Facility Order
- Notice of Amendment of O&M Plan

g? B zﬁﬁ.”ﬁﬁﬁiiyEis of Proposed Remedy

24. Regional Director's Signature: 'T 'paye;"




XHIBLIT TAB.
rator

v.s. Department of'frénsgg_ééﬁion
Office of Pipeline Safety =
Eastern Redioh &

Exhibit No.

vaidenqe‘

" obtained fro  .

Idéhtifying Witness

_ Investigator
‘Name

‘Title




- UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
'-RESEARCH AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION
.. OFFICE OF PIPELINE SAFETY ' -

'GAS- PIPELINE' SAFETY VIOLATION REPORT.NM

1. Ingpector Name = o 2.,_Date of"Inspection. | 3. ceF ¢
Robert Schaefgen ' _ 06/267/13 - - -

4, Pipeline Operator/Owner
Aero Energy, Inc:

‘Sa. Eeadquarters Address X . 5b;~.Téiephbhé No. -
230 ancoln Way East New Oxford PA 17350 (302) 734%7416" :

6. ﬂ xnspection Location - : - '7.'};ﬁ§§éétianUﬂit

Keys of Marsh Harbor 4 ' No. 2 ‘of 8

S.f Portion of System: Inspected (Describe 1ocation & facility)
Keys of Marsh Harbor, ‘Réhoboth - Beach DE

9. Nature and Size of Operator

9a. TYpe-of Opérator 9b. Type of Plpe in System
aE - : -Inspected R
'vLNG?(inbexstate} ' .. .. ‘cast Iron-
L LNG‘(Ihtrastate) _ ‘Hreel -
SX U LPG- X . Plastic
Master: Meter ’ Cther -
“Other,. Dlstrzbutlon - _ _
“‘Gathering 9¢.  Size of Operator (Mo, .of
. “Transmission’ (interstate) Miles/Customers/Storage o
Transmzsszon (1ntrastate} . Capacity 32.25 miles/ /178000

10. Nature of Probable violations (Check as many as appllcable)
1. Prdblem: in Design/Materials

2. Problem in Construction

3. Welding o Joining

‘4. 'Problem in LNG Equipment’

5. Test-Reguirements or MAOP Qualification

5
6, . Corrésion Control
7. " Pressure Control
8 “,Other Malntenance/Monltoring
9. Personnel Quallflcatlons & Training
0. Flre Protection
11, ,Securlty
12. . Anti-Drug Program
13, 'Other,Operatlons
14.-'Rep ting . Requzrements

TR TE

15. . Othér ~ °

16." Inadequate/No Procedures
A. Construction D, Training
B. Corrosion Control E. Maintenance

C.  .Operations

. Revised 12/3/08




Vieolation Ne. 1 -

Viola;gd:_ 192.605 (a) Pxocedural Manual for Operations, Maintenance, and Emergencies

11b. - Summarize what the regglation requires that operator did not -do:

Operator dld not” follow their manual of written procedures “for conductlng Operatlons
and Malntenance Act1v1t1es, specifically not providing cathodlc protectlon by
malntalnlng a plpe (tank) to so11 potentlal of at-least negative 0. 85v.,_,-

12. Prov;de detailed information about violation~

Operator: did not maintain a - pipe (tank) to soil potent1a1 of at least negat1ve 0,.85v.
As of May 14, 2012 Aero had CP readings for all tanks as well as the rlser whlch did
not meet the CP criteria of Appendlx D of Part 192. - Operator had knowledge that the CP
readings were not’ 1n complxance for- over a year when CP readlngs were agaln taken on
July 2, 2013. : - :

13. Public and/or environmental c¢oncerns in area of v1olation-

By not taklng prompt action to bring the external corrosion control. of the steel tanks
and . assoc1ated plpw gl to'compllance rigked the possibility ofa corrogion leak
:subjectzng ‘the residents of the Keys: of Marsh Harbor to. the potent1a1 of a fire due to

ot 1gn1tion of mlgratlng propane.

l4a. Person Interviewed'Adrlen TurCOtte Title: Eastern Shore RegidﬂalEManager

'14b Comments of person 1nterviewed He indicated that the cathodic¢ protectlon readlngs'
on the tanks had come up on 07/02/13 to meet the CP criteria of Appendlx D-of Part 192.

.
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Continuation Sheet
Violation No. _2

lia. CFR '”'olated.. 192.465 (d)

12. Provide detailed 1n£ormat10n about the vzolatxon. ' e ':317
Operator failed to take prompt remedlal actlon to ‘correct the def1 ies
maintaining pipe (tank) ‘to soil potential of at least negatlve 0.85 voIts as measures
through a copper sulfate half-cell.

i Pub ie and/or env1ronmenta1 concerns in area of violation-ﬂ e .

" BY riot €& ing prompt action to bring thé eixtértal dorrosion control-o egteel tanks
and ‘associated piping into compllance risked the possibility of a corrosion leak
subjecting the residents of the Keys of Marsh Harbor to the potentlal ofa flre due to
19n1t10n of wmigrating propane.

' 1l4a. Person Interviewed: Adrien Turcotte Title: Eastern Shore Regional. Manager

14b. CQmments of person interviewed: He indicated that the cathodlc-protectlon readings
on the tanks had cotie up on: 07/02/13 to meet the CP criteria of. Appendix D of Part 192.
Some of the readings were at best marginal especially when taking into cons;deratlon
the IR drop . Tank readlngs and riser varied from -0.85v to to =0.90v. -

Revised 12/3/08




Continuation Sheet
Violation Noi

lla. . CFR Vaolated._

1'1b4.' 'Sum:-tar!izé. hat the regulat;on requires that operator did not do:

12. Provide detailed informétion about the violation:

13. Publidﬂand/di.environmeﬁtélséoﬁcerns“iﬁva;ga_qf vioclation:

14a. Person Interviewed Title:
14b. Comments of pezson interv;ewed

Revised 12/3/08
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15.. Supporting Documents/Materials

Source of

Item No. Description (Include date) Rematks:
L S Documentsa T
o : _ _JﬂéfSafety Regulations OPS/PHMSA
1 1 part 192"
16. Inapector's Signature: Date:

Revised 12/3/08
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17. .C

liance Higtory — R
y Ly " Describe Viclation/

CPF No, ..

Date .. Place =~ Noncompliance "Date WL outcone .

18. @ravity of Offense

19. negreez- of ,'c:ul“pabi'ligtz
Fair B

320. Ability to?COntinue in Bu51ﬁéss
Excellent

21. Abllity to Pay
Good

22, Good Faith in Attemgting to Achieve COmpliance ..

Excellent

-23a. Proposed Remedy
X Warning Lettex

X civil Penalty: Recommended Amount § _500.

ﬂchpliance Order
Hazardous Facil;ty Qrder
Notice of Amendment of O&M Plan

23Db. Analysié’of ?rSﬁbsed Remedy

24. Regional Director's Signature:

Dateé: ..

Revised 12/3/08




_:EXHIBIT,TAB
Name of. Operator-

._{.S Department of Transportatlon
Offlce of Plpellne Safety
Eastern Region

Exhibit No. ‘

Evidence Obtained from 7 Tdentifying Witness
Investlgator'
Name Title
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